
PLANNING AND BUILDING 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 1ST OCTOBER, 2018

A MEETING of the PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE will be held in the 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS TD6 0SA on 

MONDAY, 1ST OCTOBER, 2018 at 10.00 AM

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

24 September 2018

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Minute. (Pages 3 - 12)

Minute of Meeting 3 September 2018 to be approved and signed by the Chairman.  (Copy 
attached.) 

5. Applications. 

Consider the following application for planning permission:-
(a)  Land South of Borlorac, Main Street East End, Chirnside - 18/00147/FUL - 

(Pages 13 - 34)
Erection of 57 No. dwellinghouses and associated infrastructure works.  (Copy 
attached.)

(b)  Loaningdale, Edderston Road, Peebles - 18/01044/FUL (Pages 35 - 42)
Sub-division of dwellinghouse and alterations to provide 2 dwellinghouses.  (Copy 
attached.) 

6. Appeals and Reviews. (Pages 43 - 46)

Consider report by Service Director Regulatory Services.  (Copy attached.) 
7. Any Other Items Previously Circulated. 

8. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

Public Document Pack



NOTE
Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any item 
of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the Minute 
of the meeting.

Members are reminded that any decisions taken by the Planning and Building Standards 
Committee are quasi judicial in nature. Legislation , case law and the Councillors Code of 
Conduct  require  that Members :
 Need to ensure a fair proper hearing 
 Must avoid any impression of bias in relation to the statutory decision making process
 Must take no account of irrelevant matters
 Must not prejudge an application, 
 Must not formulate a final view on an application until all available information is to 

hand and has been duly considered at the relevant meeting
 Must avoid any occasion for suspicion and any appearance of improper conduct
 Must not come with a pre prepared statement which already has a conclusion

Membership of Committee:- Councillors T. Miers (Chairman), S. Aitchison, A. Anderson, 
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton, H. Laing, S. Mountford, C. Ramage and E. Small

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Henderson 01835 826502
fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

MINUTE of Meeting of the PLANNING 
AND BUILDING STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE held in Council 
Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells TD6 
0SA on Monday, 3 September 2018 at 
10.00 a.m.

Present:- Councillors T. Miers (Chairman), S. Aitchison, J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton, 
H. Laing, S. Mountford, C. Ramage, E. Small.

Apologies:- Councillor A. Anderson. 
In Attendance:- Depute Chief Planning Officer, Lead Planning Officer (Environment and 

Infrastructure), Principal Planning Officer, Senior Roads Planning Officer
(Alan Scott), Solicitor (Emma Moir), Democratic Services Team Leader, 
Democratic Services Officer (F. Henderson).

1. MINUTE 
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the Meetings held on 25 June 2018 
and 16 July.

DECISION
APPROVED for signature by the Chairman.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Councillor Hamilton declared an interest in Application 17/01255/FUL in terms of 
Section 5 of the Councillors Code of Conduct and left the Chamber during the 
discussion.

2. APPLICATIONS
There had been circulated copies of reports by the Service Director Regulatory 
Services on applications for planning permission requiring consideration by the 
Committee.     

DECISION
DEALT with the applications as detailed in Appendix l to this Minute.

3. LOCAL BIODIVERSITY ACTION PLAN 
There had been circulated copies of a report by the Service Director Regulatory 
Services proposing approval of an updated Local Biodiversity Action Plan.  The report 
explained that The Local Biodiversity Action Plan (LBAP) was originally approved by 
the Council in 2001, with further detail under the plan being provided by a series of 
Habitat Action Plans produced between 2003 and 2010.  The LBAP formed one of 
the key elements of the Council’s Biodiversity duty under the Nature Conservation 
(Scotland) Act 2004 which provided a framework of actions for the Council and its 
partners to further the conservation of biodiversity in Scottish Borders.  The Scottish 
Biodiversity Strategy was originally published in 2004, and was updated in 2013 
adopting an ecosystem approach.  The Council’s regional pilot land use framework, 
produced under the Land Use Strategy pilot (2013-2015) tested an ecosystem 
approach and was applied to the refresh of the LBAP.  The LBAP was identified as 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



proposed Supplementary Guidance in the Local Development Plan.  The LBAP 
informed the Council’s Supplementary Guidance for biodiversity and Policy EP3 
Local Biodiversity. The purpose of the updated LBAP was to protect and enhance 
biodiversity in Scottish Borders, taking into account changes in national policy and 
was set out in Appendix A to the report.  It was proposed to submit the LBAP for a 12 
week period of public consultation as supplementary guidance to enable 
stakeholders, communities and members of the public to give their views.  The 
Members commended officers on their work and noted that the consultation would be 
highlighted at the forthcoming Area Partnership meetings. Members discussed the 
paper and highlighted the impact of plastic pollution. 

DECISION

(a) APPROVED the updated Supplementary Guidance set out in the Local 
Biodiversity Action Plan as a basis for public consultation.

(b) NOTED the Environment Report as set out in Appendix B to the report.

(c)  AGREED that:-

(i)    the paper may subsequently be adopted as Supplementary 
Guidance provided no substantive objections were received during 
the consultation period; and 

(ii) in the event of substantive objections being received a further report 
be presented to the Planning & Building Standards Committee 
detailing the terms of those objections and setting out any 
amendments that were considered appropriate.

4. SELKIRK CONSERVATION AREA REGENERATION SCHEME (CARS)
The Lead Officer for Built Heritage and Design was present at the meeting and gave 
a presentation, which noted the successful completion of the Selkirk CARS 
(Conservation Area Regeneration Scheme).  The works undertaken in Selkirk had 
completed in March 2018 following a 5 year project and the final report and 
evaluation would be submitted to Historic Environment Scotland by the end of 
September 2018.  There had been 7 priority buildings totalling £1m of which £441k 
was grant funded and 49 general repairs grants totalling £528k.  There had been 
extensive work carried out in the Market Place, which had been largely 
pedestrianised. The presentation also summarised the associated completed Selkirk 
Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Conservation Management Plan. 

DECISION
NOTED.
  

5. APPEALS AND REVIEWS
There had been circulated copies of a briefing note by the Chief Planning Officer on 
Appeals to the Scottish Ministers and Local Reviews.  

DECISION
NOTED that:-

(a) Appeals had been received in respect of:-

(i) Erection of 2 No wind turbines 11.8m high to tip on Land South 
West of 6 Lamberton Holding, Lamberton – 17/01348/FUL

Page 4



 (ii) Work to trees on Land West of Glenkinnon Lodge, Peelburnfoot, 
Clovenfords – 18/00621/TPO (subsequently withdrawn);

(b) Scottish Ministers had upheld  an appeal in respect of the construction 
of wind farm comprising 7 No turbines up to 14.9m high to tip, 5 No.  
turbines up to 130m high to tip and associated infrastructure on land 
South West of Lurgiescleuch (Pines Burn), Hawick – 17/00010/FUL 

(c) there remained three appeals outstanding in respect of:-

 Land South West of Easter Happrew Farmhouse, Peebles
 Hutton Hall Barns, Hutton
 Land North West of Gilston Farm, Heriot

(d) Review Requests had been received in respect of:-

(i) Erection of dwellinghouse and associated access road, parking 
area and combined entrance/layby on land West of Langton 
Birches, Duns – 18/00270/PPP;

(ii) Change of use from retail (Class 1) to mortgage shop (Class 2) 
and external re-decoration at 37 Bank Street, Galashiels – 
18/00764/FUL;

(e) the decision of the Appointed Officer had been Overturned in respect of:-

(i) Change of use of agricultural buildings and alteration to form 12 
No dwellinghouses at Agricultural Buildings, South East of 
Merlewood, Hutton Castle barns, Hutton – 16/01371/FUL, subject 
to conditions, informatives and Section 75 Legal Agreement;

(ii) Part change of use of paddock to form new access and drive to 
dwellinghouse, erection of gates and summerhouse and 
formation of new parking area and tennis courts at Southbank 
and Paddock, South East of Southbank, Bowden, Melrose – 
17/01362/FUL, subject to conditions and informatives.

(f) the decision of the Appointed Officer had been upheld in respect of:-

(i) Erection of dwellinghouse on Land South West of 1 Hill Terrace, 
Stow – 17/01734/PPP;

(ii) Erection of dwellinghouse on land North West of Doonbyre, 
Smith’s Road, Darnick – 18/00287/FUL

(g) there remained three Section 36 Public Local Inquiries Outstanding in respect 
of :-

 Fallago Rig I, Longformacus
 Fallago Rig 2, Longformacus
 Birneyknowe Wind Farm, Land North, South, East and West of 

Birnieknowe Cottage, Hawick 

Page 5



The meeting concluded at 1.30 p.m. 

Page 6



 APPENDIX I

APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 

Reference Nature of Development               Location
                     17/01255/FUConstruction of wind farm comprising 7 No turbines up to 132m high to tip, Land West of Whitslade

access tracks, control building and (Barrel Law) 
associated infrastructure Selkirk 

Decision:  Refused contrary to Officer’s recommendation for the following reason:-

The development conflicts with Policy ED9 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 
2016 and the Scottish Borders Council “Renewable Energy” Supplementary Guidance 
2018 in that it would have unacceptable, significant and adverse impacts and effects, by 
virtue of

- Its vertical scale in relation to the scale of the receiving landscape
- Its prominent and dominant appearance in local, adjacent and wider landscapes
- Its poorly designed appearance from a range of vantage points due to overlapping 

and variation in heights viewed in relation to the underlying topography
- The intensification of adverse landscape and visual impacts due to cumulative 

visibility with Langhope Rig windfarm, including from the area around the former site 
of the William Ogilvie Cairn on the road to Roberton.

- The vertical scale of the turbines, combined with their elevated position in the 
landscape.

- The proximity and dominance of the turbines to residences and their environs, 
including Easter Alemoor.

NOTE 
Mr Stephen Lucking on behalf of the Local Community spoke against the application.  Mr Clark 
Crosbie , Head of Development, ABO Wind UK Ltd spoke in support of the application.

VOTE
Councillor Laing, seconded by Councillor Small moved that the application be approved as 
per the Officer recommendation. 

Councillor Miers, seconded by Councillor Mountford, moved as an amendment that the 
application be refused on the grounds that the development conflicts with Policy ED9 of the 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 and the Scottish Borders Council 
“Renewable Energy” Supplementary Guidance 2018 in that it would have unacceptable, 
significant and adverse impacts and effects.

On a show of hands Members voted as follows:-
Motion - 2 votes
Amendment - 5 votes
The amendment was accordingly carried.

Page 7



    Reference Nature of Development Location
    18/00309/LBC Demolition of Church and St Aidans Church 

Church Hall and Church Hall,
Gala Park Galashiels 

Decision: APPROVED subject to the following conditions and informatives:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiry of three years from the 
date of this permission.
Reason:  To comply with the provisions of section 16 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)(Scotland) Act 1997, as amended.

2. The approved demolition is limited to the church and church hall buildings identified in red 
on both the approved site plan and elevation drawings, and does not include the demolition 
of boundary walls not identified in red on both plan and drawings, unless already consented 
for removal under 14/00751/LBC 
Reason: To safeguard features of special architectural and historic interest

3. No demolition shall commence until a scheme for the disposal of the materials from the 
demolition, including stone, slate and glazing (including painted glass) and internal fabric 
and fittings (including but not limited to pews) has been submitted for the approval of the 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include specifications for a quantity of stone to be 
retained for incorporation into the street frontage of the redevelopment of the site. The 
demolition shall only proceed in accordance with the approved scheme
Reason: To safeguard features of special architectural and historic interest

4. No demolition shall commence until a scheme for the disposal of internal 
monuments/plaques/war memorials (including means of removal and off-site display) has 
been submitted for the approval of the Planning Authority. The demolition shall only 
proceed in accordance with the approved scheme
Reason: To safeguard features of special architectural and historic interest

5. No demolition shall commence until the applicant has secured and implemented an 
approved Written Scheme of Investigation (method statement) outlining a Historic Building 
Photographic Survey. The requirements of this are:
i) The Written Scheme of Investigation shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for    
          approval prior to commencement of the survey.
ii) Initial survey results shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for approval. 
iii) The final results shall be submitted in the form of a Historic Building Photographic 
         Survey Report within one month following completion of all on-site survey works
iv) The report, including any documentation, plans, elevations, sketches and 

            photographs shall be submitted in a .pdf format. The digital photographic archive   
            shall be included on a CD.

v) Once approved the archive and report shall also be reported to the National Record   
            of the Historic Environment (NRHE) hosted by Historic Environment Scotland (HES)  
            and the Planning Authority's Historic Environment Record (HER) within three months 
            of on-site survey completion.

Reason: To preserve by record a building of architectural and historical interest.

6. No demolition shall be undertaken during the breeding bird season (March to September),  
unless in strict compliance with a Species Protection Plan for breeding birds, that shall be 
submitted to the Planning Authority for approval, prior to commencement of demolition.

       Reason: To limit the potential for adverse impacts on breeding birds

Page 8



Informatives

1. It is the responsibility of the developers and their contractors to ensure that appropriate 
traffic management measures are in place for the public road during demolition. Liaison 
with the Council’s road network officer is recommended. 

2. In order to limit the effects of the demolition works on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties, the developers and their contractors should ensure that all works are carried 
out in accordance with BS5228.

3. In the event that bats are discovered following the commencement of works, works 
should stop immediately and the developer must contact SNH (tel: 01896-756652) for 
further guidance.  Works can only recommence by following any guidance given by 
SNH. The developer and all contractors to be made aware of accepted standard 
procedures of working with bats at www.bats.org.uk. Further information and articles 
available at: 
http://www.bats.org.uk/pages/bats_and_buildings.html
http://www.bats.org.uk/pages/existing_buildings.html
http://www.bats.org.uk/publications_download.php/1404/Bats_Trees.pdf

4. There is a separate requirement through section 7 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas)(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to allow Historic Environment 
Scotland the opportunity to carry out recording of the building. To avoid any 
unnecessary delay in the case of consent being granted, applicants are strongly 
encouraged to complete and return the Consent Application Referral Form found at 
www.historicenvironment.scot/about-us/what-we-do/survey-and-recording/threatened-
buildings-survey-programme.

Note: Gavin Yuill, Agent spoke in support of the application.

    Reference Nature of Development Location
    18/00642/AMC Erection of dwellinghouse (approval Land West of Lamberton Lodge

of matters specified in conditions Lamberton
15/00743/PPP)

Decision: APPROVED subject to the following conditions and informative notes:

Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
complete accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the Planning 
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.

2. Prior to the commencement of development, sample panels of the external materials 
hereby approved for use in the development (as shown on the approved plans) shall 
be prepared on site for the prior approval by the Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out wholly in accordance with the approved materials 
thereafter.
Reason: The materials to be used require further consideration to ensure a 
satisfactory form of development, which contributes appropriately to its setting.

Page 9

http://www.bats.org.uk/pages/bats_and_buildings.html
http://www.bats.org.uk/pages/existing_buildings.html
http://www.bats.org.uk/publications_download.php/1404/Bats_Trees.pdf
http://www.historicenvironment.scot/about-us/what-we-do/survey-and-recording/threatened-buildings-survey-programme
http://www.historicenvironment.scot/about-us/what-we-do/survey-and-recording/threatened-buildings-survey-programme


3. Prior to the commencement of development, details of the material and finish of the 
doors and windows on the dwellinghouse hereby approved shall be submitted for the 
approval of the Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the development shall be carried out 
wholly in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: to provide satisfactory control over the appearance of the windows and 
doors on the dwellinghouse hereby approved, in the interests of visual amenity.

4. The mezzanine window on the front (north) elevation shown on the drawing number 
kw-158-GMC 103 hereby approved shall be glazed with obscure glass in accordance 
with a scheme of details (including precise details of the opaqueness of the proposed 
glazing) that shall first be submitted to, and agreed in writing by the Planning 
Authority in advance of the installation of the window.  Upon installation the window 
shall be permanently fixed shut.  Thereafter the window shall be so retained unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of the adjoining property.

5. No development is to commence until a report has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Planning Authority that the public mains water supply is available and 
can be provided for the development.  Prior to the occupation of the building(s), 
written confirmation shall be provided to the approval of the Planning Authority that 
the development has been connected to the public mains water supply.
Reason: To ensure that the Development is adequately serviced with a sufficient 
supply of wholesome water and there are no unacceptable impacts upon the amenity 
of any neighbouring properties.

6. No water supply, other that the public mains shall be used to supply the Development 
without the written agreement of the Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the Development is adequately serviced with a sufficient 
supply of wholesome water and there are no unacceptable impacts upon the amenity 
of any neighbouring properties.

7. No development shall commence until details of boundary treatment have been 
submitted for the approval of the Planning Authority.  Thereafter the development 
shall be carried out wholly in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: to ensure the appropriate integration of the development hereby approved 
into the surrounding landscape, in the interests of visual amenity.

8. No development shall commence until the applicant has provided evidence that 
arrangements are in place to ensure that the private drainage system will be 
maintained in a serviceable condition
Reason: To ensure that the development does not have a detrimental effect on 
amenity and public health.

Informatives 
1. It should be borne in mind that only contractors first approved by the Council may work 

within the public road boundary.

2. The applicant is advised that conditions 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 of planning consent 
15/00743/PPP remain valid and should be satisfied in accordance with their respective 
requirements.

3. With regard to the obscure glazing required by condition 5, please note that the Planning 
Authority wishes the details required to demonstrate the adequacy of the opaqueness of 
the proposed glazing.  Accordingly it is not details of the specific design or pattern that is 
required, but a measure of the proposed glazing's actual opaqueness.  In order to be 
supported, this should be the maximum opaqueness within the supplier's range.

Page 10



4. Private drainage systems often impact on amenity and cause other problems when no 
clear responsibility or access rights exist for maintaining the system in a working 
condition.  Problems can also arise when new properties connect into an existing system 
and the rights and duties have not been set down in law.  To discharge the Condition 
relating to the private drainage arrangements, the Applicant should produce 
documentary evidence that the maintenance duties on each dwelling served by the 
system have been clearly established by way of a binding legal agreement. Access 
rights should also be specified.

5. Stoves and Use of Solid Fuel – These installations can cause smoke and odour 
complaints and any Building and Planning Consents for the installation do not indemnify 
the applicant in respect of Nuisance action. In the event of nuisance action being taken 
there is no guarantee that remedial work will be granted building/planning permission.  
Accordingly this advice can assist you to avoid future problems.  The location of the flue 
should take into account other properties that may be downwind.  The discharge point 
for the flue should be located as high as possible to allow for maximum dispersion of the 
flue gases.  The flue should be terminated with a cap that encourages a high gas efflux 
velocity.  The flue and appliance should be checked and serviced at regular intervals to 
ensure that they continue to operate efficiently and cleanly.  The appliance should only 
burn fuel of a type and grade that is recommended by the manufacturer.

If you live in a Smoke Control Area you must only use an Exempt Appliance  
http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/appliances.php?country=s and the fuel that is Approved 
for use in it http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/fuels.php?country=s . 

In wood burning stoves you should only burn dry, seasoned timber. Guidance is 
available at: http://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-woodfuel-
woodasfuelguide.pdf/$FILE/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf

Treated timber, waste wood, manufactured timber and laminates etc. should not be used 
as fuel.  Paper and kindling can be used for lighting, but purpose made firelighters can 
cause fewer odour problems.

 
NOTE: Mrs Norma Willet and Mr James Pritchard spoke against the application. 
Mr Paul Craig, Applicant spoke in support of the application. 

Page 11

http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/appliances.php?country=s
http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/fuels.php?country=s
http://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf/$FILE/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf
http://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf/$FILE/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

1 OCTOBER 2018

APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

ITEM: REFERENCE NUMBER: 18/00147/FUL
OFFICER: Scott Shearer
WARD: East Berwickshire
PROPOSAL: Erection of 57 No dwellinghouses and associated 

infrastructure works
SITE: Land West Of Borlorac

Main Street East End
Chirnside

APPLICANT: Springfield Properties Plc
AGENT: Springfield Properties Plc

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application occupies 1.5ha of arable farm land to the north of Chirnside. The site 
slopes from north to south. The south eastern corner of the site extends down to 
Main Street where this land was formally used to provide access to the now 
redundant Viewfield Garage. The vacated garage and its former petrol pumps still 
occupy this ground with stone retaining walls used to support the existing access and 
garage site. A dwelling known as “Janretta” is located to the east of this access point 
with another dwelling called “Borlorac” positioned behind it along the site’s eastern 
boundary. A mature hedge and stone wall separates the site from “Borlorac”. The 
southern boundary of the site adjoins the rear of the residential properties on 
Northfield Terrace which is enclosed by a post and wire fence. Comrades Park lies to 
the west of the site. 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

The application seeks consent for the erection of 57 residential properties. A range of 
house types are proposed and consist of 2-3 bedroom dwelling units and 2 bedroom 
cottage flats. All of the buildings are two storey in height and they are arranged as 
terraced rows or semi-detached units. The palate of materials consists of charcoal 
coloured concrete roof tiles, with a combination of white render, reconstituted stone 
and dark grey composite clad wall finishes. The windows are to be finished with dark 
grey uPVC frames. The site is to be accessed from Main Street to the south east 
corner of the site where the former Viewfield Garage and its associated infrastructure 
will be removed. A SUDS basin is included within the development and there are 
some areas of site landscaping as well as structural landscaping proposed to the 
north of the site.

PLANNING HISTORY

The site has no planning history.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5a



REPRESENTATION SUMMARY

Five objection comments from four different third parties have been received. The 
grounds of objection are summarised as follows;

 Contrary to Local Plan
 Density of Site
 Detrimental to environment
 Detrimental to residential amenity
 Inadequate access
 Site inaccessible in periods of bad weather (snow fall)
 Gradient of access is too steep
 Inadequate drainage
 Increased traffic
 Insufficient parking space
 Poor design
 Privacy of neighbouring properties
 Road safety
 Subsidence
 The development should be located to the east of the site allow access from 

the B6437 as indicated in the LDP.
 Overprovision of housing in the area which no local employers to support new 

residents. 
 Flooding.
 Developing this part of the site for housing will lead to the retail part of the 

allocation having to go to the east which is poorly located to the Main Street.
 Value of property

It was identified that five notifiable properties were omitted from the neighbour 
notification process on registration of the planning application. These properties were 
formally notified on the 22nd of August 2018 and were provided with a 21 day period 
for response in accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013. This notification period 
expired on the 12th of September and I can report that no further observations were 
received from the neighbours notified.

APPLICANTS’ SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The applicant submitted a Design and Access Statement and a Planning Statement 
in support of the application.  These documents are available on Public Access.

Additionally, further information submitted in support of this planning application 
includes:  

 PAC Report
 Drainage Assessment
 Site Investigation
 Energy Statement
 Technical details for the proposed Air Source Heat Pumps
 Ecological Reports

Page 14



CONSULTATION RESPONSES:

Scottish Borders Council Consultees

Access Ranger: No objection. There are no claimed rights of way or Core Paths on 
this area of Land. Core Path 87 runs along the north side of Main Street at the 
entrance to the site and should remain open and accessible at all times.

Ecology Officer: The development does not impact on any designated sites. SEPAs 
guidelines should be followed to prevent pollution during construction. Bat surveys 
have been provided for the buildings and habitats on site. The overall potential for the 
site to support bats is low so a site licence is not required, however, given the bat 
activity was found close to the site an informative is recommended to follow best 
practice procedures if bats are discovered. There is potential for the site to support 
breeding birds therefore any works to hedgerows, tall vegetation and ground works 
should be undertaken outwith the breeding season. Opportunities exist to enhance 
the habitat network through appropriate planting and the careful design of the SUDS 
feature.

Environmental Health (Amenity and Pollution): Request that further information is 
provided to assess the noise impact of the air source heating pumps and a 
construction method statement. 

Environmental Health (Contaminated Land Officer): No objection.

Flood Risk and Coastal Management: No objection. The site is not at risk of fluvial 
or pluvial flood risk. The addition of the SUDS pond is welcomed. This should be 
designed to comply with CIRA C753 SuDS Manual to avoid increased flood risk 
elsewhere. The pond is located above properties at Northfield Terrace so there is a 
risk of it overtopping if built to a low standard which would cause a flood risk to these 
properties. To avoid this it is recommended that the pond is designed to a 1 in 200 
with climate change allowance of 33% year level standard so as not to increase flood 
risk downstream. 

Forward Planning: No objection. The site is allocated for mixed used development. 
The principle of housing on this site is acceptable and complies with Policy PMD3: 
Land Use Allocation. The site has an indicative capacity of 60 units, the scale of the 
development is appropriate to the site. The allocation states that the mixed use 
should incorporate 3 hectares for housing and 3 hectares for a retail opportunity. The 
proposal ensures that this criterion is satisfied and there is land remaining for a retail 
opportunity in the future. 

The landscaping is located outwith the settlement boundary. Any landscaping 
scheme must ensure that it can be implemented by the developer and that they have 
control over the land required for landscaping. 

The proposed housing is 100% affordable housing so it will be exempt from paying 
any developer contributions towards education or affordable housing, in accordance 
with Policy HD1: Affordable and Special Needs Housing and the Supplementary 
Guidance on Developer Contributions and Policy IS2: Developer Contributions. 

The garage/pump site may have potential contamination, however any remedial 
works required would be considered by the Environmental Health Officer, in 
accordance with Policy IS13: Contaminated Land. 

Page 15



Given the rising nature of the slope from the south to the north, the housing proposed 
will sit at a higher level in comparison to the existing houses along the Main Street. 
Consideration must be given to any landscape/visual/residential amenity impacts 
which the proposal may give rise to, in accordance with Policy HD3: Residential 
Amenity. All proposals must take into consideration the principles contained above 
and in a number of other LDP policies, including Policy PMD1: Sustainability, Policy 
PMD2: Quality Standards and Policy EP3: Local Biodiversity.

Housing Strategy: The site is not identified in the SHIP. On site affordable housing 
delivery will have to satisfy SBCs Affordable Housing policy requirements.

Landscape Architect: The setting of the development occupies an open and 
exposed location, its proposed development needs to comply with the site 
requirements in the LDP. The principle of the development is established but 
because the site is smaller than the allocated area there is a mismatch between the 
setting and LDP site requirements. The woodland boundary to the north of the site 
was not adequately sized or specified in the original proposal to meet the LDP site 
requirements. The precise detail for all ‘non domestic’ areas within the site, 
particularly boundary treatments should be provided, ideally before the application is 
determined. These details should include species, specification, number, density etc. 
and details of future maintenance responsibility and timing commitments.

On the 28th of June an updated response was provided which confirmed that 
structural planting with a depth of at least 25m is required for the woodland strip to 
the north of the site. Ideally, this land should be included in the red line application 
boundary; however, there is no issue with the strip being delivered under a Section 
75. It is recommended that the structure planting should be implemented at the start 
of the development of the site with a timetable, detailed specification, maintenance 
and defects liability cover. Preferably the planting should be done prior to the 
development of the houses so that the woodland is establishing as the site is being 
developed. The buffer will require fencing and access to permit future management. 
The pedestrian link within the planting should link to the housing at each end so the 
planting provides greenspace for the applicants.

Roads Planning: No objection in principle. During the consideration of the LDP it 
was suggested that the main access would be from the B6437 to the east with a 
secondary access taken from Main Street. This was largely due to no part of the site 
bounding Main Street and it is still the intention that when the remainder of the site is 
developed, access from the B6437 will be provided. The Transport Statement 
confirms that the access road, including its gradient is acceptable but it is envisaged 
that some retaining walls will be required. The proposed layout is well connected and 
offers good possibilities for future connections. Some minor points are raised;

 The nature of the site means that the proposed access is a long straight drag 
up the hill and this goes against current guidance, however, this is relatively 
unavoidable on this site. To help reduce vehicle speeds Plot 40 should form a 
feature to highlight a stop point at the end of the straight. 

 The junction of the main access road and the road serving plots 1 -14 should 
be fully block paved in order to create a feature. 

 The roads serving plot 1-14 and 16-18 should be a shared surface. The exact 
surface finishes can be agreed via a suitably worded condition.

The original layout included an over provision of parking spaces and while extra 
numbers are welcomed to cater for the displacement of vehicles on Main Street East 

Page 16



End, a further reduction is possible. The need for 6 spaces on the north side of the 
square are questionable and a spread of 3-4 disabled spaces should be provided. 

On the 31st of July, Roads Planning Officers confirmed that the revised proposals 
addressed the observations they originally raised.

Waste Strategy (Neighbourhood Services): No objection. 

Statutory Consultees 

Community Council: No objection to the principle of the development and the layout 
is welcomed. Concerns are raised about;

 accessing the site from Main Street
 gradient of the access is not suitable for all users
 parking displacement
 SUDS proposals may increase flood risk
 Sewage capacity 

Scottish Environmental Protection Society (SEPA): Provided Scottish Water 
accepts the new loading of the foul drainage into their system and the SUDS basin is 
designed and constructed with the current CIRIA C753 manual, SEPA do not object. 
Regulatory advice is provided for the applicant in relation to surface water, soil 
management and good practice.

Other Consultees

None.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016

Mixed Use Allocation Site Reference: MCHIR001: Comrades Park East

Policies

PMD1: Sustainability
PMD2: Quality Standards 
PMD3: Land Use Allocations  
HD1: Affordable and Special Needs Housing
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity
EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species
EP2: National Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species
EP3: Local Biodiversity
IS2: Developer Contributions 
IS5: Protection of Access Routes
IS6: Road Adoption Standards
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards
IS8: Flooding
IS9: Waste Water Treatment and Sustainable Urban Drainage

Page 17



Other considerations:

Supplementary Planning Guidance

 Affordable Housing (2015)
 Biodiversity (2005)
 Development Contributions (2011) updated January 2018
 Landscape and Development (2008)
 Placemaking and Design (2010) 
 Privacy and Sunlight Guide (2006)

Designing Streets 2010

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013

KEY PLANNING ISSUES:

The following key planning issues for this proposed development are;

 Whether the proposal represents a suitable development on an allocated 
mixed use site within the Chirnside settlement boundary 

 Whether the proposed is acceptable in terms of design, road safety, 
residential amenity and site services. 

 Whether the matters raised in opposition to the application are of sufficient 
weight to outweigh the requirement for the application to be determined in line 
with prevailing policy.  

ASSESSMENT OF APPLICATION:

Principle

The application requires to be assessed principally against Policy PMD3 Land Use 
Allocations of the Local Development Plan 2016 (LDP). The site falls within a larger 
allocation which extends to 13.2ha, Site Reference MCHIR001 in the LDP. The site is 
allocated for Mixed Used development with provision for Structure 
Planting/Landscaping along the northern third of this allocation. The Site 
Requirements for the allocation listed in the LDP requires that mixed used 
development incorporates 3 hectares for housing and 3ha for a retail opportunity 
close to the village centre. The indicative site capacity for the residential development 
of this allocation is noted as 60 units.

The principle for a residential development at this allocated site represents a land 
use which is supported by Policy PMD3. The site falls within the area of land which is 
proposed for development in the LDP and does not stray into the area required for 
structure planting. The size of the site which extends to 1.5ha falls within the 3ha of 
land within this allocation identified for residential development and leaves sufficient 
ground for a retail opportunity. The proposed development of 57 residential units falls 
within the sites indicative capacity of 60 units. The number of units proposed would 
take up the vast majority of the indicative housing capacity within only half the area 
identified for housing. The number of units proposed in this site compared to the 
capacity of the LDP suggests that the density of this proposal is high; however the 
LDP lists indicative capacities for the number of residential units as a guide and not a 

Page 18



limit.  The merits of the proposed layout will establish if this site has the capacity to 
accommodate the scale of the proposed development.

One of the key LDP requirements for the development of this site is that the 
proposals should provide a substantial new woodland boundary along the north of 
the allocation to contain the development. This area of ground is identified in the 
Chirnside Settlement Map. The planting directly associated with this site will integrate 
with other planting along the northern edge of the remaining allocated site, once this 
neighbouring land is developed. A footpath should also be provided within this area 
of structural landscaping. 

The 10m depth of structural planting proposed within the original submission was not 
considered sufficient. However, having discussed the depth of planting illustrated on 
MCHIR001 in the Chirnside Settlement Map with the Councils Landscape Architect 
and Forward Planning team it was agreed that the size of this area of planting was 
excessive in relation to the depth of the developable site. In addition the limited public 
interest from the rising land to the north would not necessitate such a deep area of 
planting. The landowner was reluctant to provide a deeper area of landscaping as 
this would result in the loss of productive agricultural land. A compromise has now 
been reached and the revised Site Plan has increased the depth of this landscaping 
to approximately 26m. This is judged to contain and shelter the site while also 
providing sufficient ground to form a connecting path within this woodland area. In 
the event that this application is approved, the issue regarding the depth of the 
structure planting illustrated for MCHIR001 in the LDP can, where suitable, be 
reassessed and addressed in future development plans. 

The Site Requirements for the allocation list that the creation of an access from the 
B6437 to the east is sought. Due to the location of the particular development away 
from this access it would not be appropriate to pursue the formation of this access as 
part of the development of this site. Otherwise the site does provide direct vehicular 
as well as cycle and pedestrian access to Main Street.

In principle, the proposal is considered to represent the development of an allocated 
site in a manner which complies with its intended use and satisfies the requirements 
for the site noted within the LDP. The merits of the proposed design, access and 
other material planning matters will be considered below.

Tenure

The proposed housing would comprise of 100% affordable housing development. 
The applicants have confirmed that the scheme will be taken over by a local 
affordable housing provider who will ultimately own and operate the development. 
The Councils Housing Strategy team are not aware of an agreement already being in 
place for an affordable housing provider and the site is not included in the current 
Strategic Housing Investment Plan 2018/23. 

Given that there are no firm agreements in place regarding the delivery of this 
scheme at this juncture; it is recommended that a planning condition to control the 
occupancy of the development for affordable housing tenures which comply with the 
Councils definition of affordable housing listed in the SPG is required. This condition 
will provide suitable control of the development to ensure it is occupied in accordance 
with its intended use and avoid the accommodation being available on the open 
market. 

Page 19



Placemaking and Design

Policy PMD2 sets out the Council’s position in terms of quality standards for all new 
development and sets out specific criteria on Placemaking & Design.  

Layout

Within this part of Chirnside the pattern of development follows a linear arrangement 
on an east to west axis which is centred on Main Street. 

The proposals are laid out on a grid pattern with the rows of terraced or semi-
detached buildings arranged to follow the topography of the site. This arrangement 
creates a simple layout which integrates with the linear street pattern of the 
surrounding area. The positioning of the buildings allows the street to be well 
overlooked which in particular is aided by buildings on corners having a dual frontage 
so that they address roads which wrap around these plots. The layout of plots within 
the site maximises the sites southern aspect. Each of the dwellings includes a private 
rear garden. Some of the gardens of the buildings contained within the terraced rows 
are small but still acceptable. The site provides areas of public landscaping which 
help to compensate for the scale of some private spaces. Overall, the density of the 
proposals is not considered to represent overdevelopment of this site with the plot 
ratios being in keeping with other developments in the village.

The positioning of the site within the wider allocation only provides it with the 
possibility of being accessed from Main Street and the nature of the site means that 
the formation of a long straight road up the hill is unavoidable. The provision of 
landscaping and the SUDS feature together with the square immediately off this road 
will provide some interest upon arrival. Nevertheless, this layout channels views 
towards Plot 40. While the original layout had the front elevation of plot 40 facing 
south, its positioning did not provide any termination to this view. The latest revision 
to this layout, has repositioned this block so that it is now able to address this street 
and act as a feature on arrival, improving road safety by slowing traffic speeds. 
Additionally, the revised positioning of this block integrates more suitably with the 
topography of the site it allows the cottage flat which is a dual aspect unit to be 
positioned so that it provides a frontage to the west as well as the south. Elsewhere, 
there have been some minor modifications to the positioning of plots 25 – 32 to 
provide some relief from what was previously a long uninterrupted building line. 

The grid pattern arrangement has created a rigid road layout. Through some subtle 
changes in road widths, surfacing materials and a square, there is now improved 
visual interest in the road design which will also help create a safe road network. The 
layout is judged to comply with principles promoted by Designing Streets. There have 
also been some revisions to the parking courts through the addition of landscaping to 
help give these areas some more visual interest. There was potentially a dominance 
of long rows of parking, due to an over-provision of parking spaces. Some bays have 
now been removed which has allowed landscaping to be introduced adding extra 
visual relief. Importantly, the layout of the development provides future access into 
the allocated land to both the east and west which can be utilised as part of the 
development of the adjoining land. A path is also provided through the northern row 
of properties to connect into the planted area.  

The existing site access is retained by low stone walls on both sides and in order to 
form the long access road further retaining walls of up to 1m in height will be 
required. The visual impact of retaining walls of this scale will not be adverse 

Page 20



provided the walling is finished appropriately. A planning condition can seek to agree 
these details.

House design

Within Chirnside there is a mixture of built forms and architectural styles including 
traditional dwellinghouses on Main Street mixed with more suburban architecture. 
Away from Main Street, a modern housing development is under construction at 
Erskine Place. 

The proposals are generally modestly scaled residential units. All of the proposed 
house types are two storeys with pitched roofs. The buildings are of a similar scale 
but modest changes in height and depths are included in the range of building types. 
The proportions of the buildings are not out of keeping within others within the 
townscape. The openings on the public elevations of the buildings have a vertical 
emphasis which aligns with the Councils design recommendations contained within 
our Placemaking and Design SPG. 

It is notable that on determining two applications made by this developer within Duns 
(application references 17/00993/FUL and 17/00994/FUL) that the P&BS Committee 
imposed conditions to seek to improve the design response of the house types. Each 
planning application has to be considered on its own merits, paying particular 
attention to its context. These house types are similar to those proposed in Duns 
except that these proposals have included eyebrow eaves, entrance canopies, bands 
of different material finishes and the stepped positioning of the buildings in their plots.

Overall, the proposals are consistent in their architectural language and are generally 
modest dwelling units commensurate with other affordable housing schemes 
throughout the Borders. The design response of this developer has been improved 
since the determination of a similar scheme in Duns. The architectural appearance of 
the proposals through the use of the design details identified above and the changes 
in building heights provide sufficient variation within this scheme. The proposed 
house designs are considered to be acceptable in architectural terms and scale and 
the design of the proposals does not conflict with the character and appearance of 
the surrounding area. 

Materials

The drawings and Design and Access Statement for the applications sets out that the 
proposed external materials are as follows;

Walls: 
• Wet dash smooth white colour K-rend external render
• Reconstituted sandstone (amended from Grey facing Brick)
• Dark grey colour composite cladding boarding

Windows: 
• UPVC double glazed, dark grey colour
• Precast window cill, grey colour finish
• Powder coated aluminium cill (cladding situations) 

Roof: 
• Concrete smooth charcoal colour roof tiles 
• UPVC fascia and soffits, dark grey colour
• UPVC rainwater goods, black colour

Page 21



The use of a grey facing brick is not a material which was identified to be used locally 
so it was judged to be incongruous with the palette of materials within this area. 
Provided that it is of a suitable quality, the use of reconstituted sandstone would 
better integrate with some of the stone finishes elsewhere in Chirnside as well as the 
use of this material within the residential development to the south west of the village. 
Otherwise, the proposed palette of materials is considered to be acceptable and 
appropriate for this location.  It will not detract from the character or appearance of 
the area or the neighbouring dwellings.  It was questioned if the developer would be 
willing to add another render and cladding colour to the palette of materials but this 
has been resisted. Within Chirnside, the majority of the larger residential 
developments have a single palette of materials. As a result of this context and 
suitable variation being provided within the design of these proposals, a single 
palette of colour finishes is acceptable.  It is, however, recommended that precise 
details of the external roof and wall finishes is agreed by way of condition to ensure 
that their specification is acceptable and compatible with the surrounding area. 

The road surfaces and parking areas are a combination of black top and block 
paviours. Visually, the use of this combination of materials is acceptable, provided 
the colours of the block paviours are suitable. The precise details of these material 
finishes can be agreed as a condition of this consent.

In response to Policy PMD2, the proposals represent an acceptable form and scale 
of development. The design of this residential scheme does not conflict with the 
character and appearance of the surrounding townscape and is in keeping with 
adopted policy and guidance in relation to placemaking and design.  

Landscape

The site is not located within or will impact on the setting of any designated 
landscape areas. Policy PMD2 seeks to ensure that proposals incorporate 
appropriate landscaping works including structural planting where necessary to 
ensure that a development integrates with its surroundings. 

Despite the site occupying rising ground along the northern edge of Chirnside, the 
site is relatively inconspicuous within the wider landscape area with limited views 
from public roads and paths. An appropriate extent of woodland structure planting 
has now been proposed on the updated site plan which is judged to satisfy the 
requirements of the LDP by containing and also sheltering this development. This 
planting is deep enough to readily allow the future screening provided to the 
allocated land to the east and west to integrate into this planted area once that land 
is developed. Until that happens, this site will remain relatively open from the east 
and west but the visual impact will be acceptable as a result of the layout of the 
proposals and the limited visual receptors from the wider surrounding area.

The structure planting is being provided on land which is out with the application site 
boundary. This land is under the control of the landowner. Under these 
circumstances, a Section 75 Agreement can be used to agree the precise details of 
the area of off-site structural planning to include its specification, implementation and 
maintenance. This agreement will also seek to ensure that the design of the 
landscape area includes a footpath which will link into a path included within 
structural planting along the remaining allocated land to provide access to Comrades 
Park. The Landscape Architect has recommended that this off site landscaping 
should be implemented before site construction works commence so that the planting 
can become established early in the development process.

Page 22



Within the site, the main area of public landscaping is located adjacent to the access 
road. This landscaping helps to soften the visual impact of a long access road and 
adds to the sense of place of the proposals. No other significant areas of landscaping 
are provided within the layout. The development will, however, eventually link to the 
protected green space at Comrades Park and the structural landscaping along the 
top of the site will provide the development with a suitable landscaped backdrop. The 
other areas of landscaping spread around the development are limited to small 
pockets of planting and boundary hedging. Although small, their incorporation does 
help to break up the hard surfaces and also provide some containment to the parking 
courts at Plot 11 -14 and 33 – 40. 

Apart from the plot boundary hedging, no details of the proposed means of enclosure 
are provided. There is no visual issue with the location of boundaries but it would be 
prudent to avoid tall fences in public areas e.g. outer boundary of Plot 17-20 walls 
are preferred in these locations. Ultimately, the principle of the landscape proposals 
is considered to be acceptable and it is recommended that a detailed landscape plan 
which includes precise details of the boundary can be agreed by a suitably worded 
planning condition.

Subject to the combination of planning conditions and a legal agreement it is 
recommended that the development will provided suitable landscaping within the 
development site and structural planting along its northern edge to enable the 
development to appropriately integrate within the sites surroundings on the rural 
edge of the settlement. The proposals are judged to comply with criterion f) of Policy 
PMD2.

Access and Parking

As previously noted the proposal provides access on to Main Street which satisfies a 
site requirement for the development of this allocated site. The location of this 
development within the allocation does not necessitate the formation of a new access 
on to the B6437 but the proposed layout of the development favourably lends itself to 
tie in with future access from the east. 

Concerns have been raised by third parties over the means of access and, 
particularly, the gradient of this access. Whilst steep, this is not uncommon for streets 
on the north side of Main Street to be accessed using access roads with steep 
gradients. The proposals have been accompanied by a Transport Statement (TS) 
which confirms that the gradient of the access road is appropriate for a road of this 
specification. Following the consultation response from the RPS it has been 
confirmed that the site’s access will require retaining walls. However, as noted 
above, the scale of this walling is not excessive. The TS also confirms that the new 
junction will provide sufficient visibility in both directions. The development is judged 
to have adequately demonstrated that the means of access will not adversely impact 
on road safety.

It has been accepted that the development of this site will lead to some displacement 
of parking from Main Street. The extra layby spaces provided towards the junction 
and away from the dwelling houses will help to mitigate some of the parking pressure 
on Main Street as a result of this development. The original layout included an 
overprovision of parking spaces. To improve the visual impact of the development, 
some of these spaces have been removed and replaced with planting. An acceptable 
number of parking spaces is now provided across the development to serve the 
volume of houses proposed and includes four disabled spaces.

Page 23



The site access does not raise any road safety objection from the Council’s Road 
Planning Service and the parking provision complies with Council standards for a 
residential development in this location. The proposal is judged to comply with 
access criteria listed in Policy PMD2 and parking requirements provided under Policy 
IS7.

Policy IS5 of the LDP seeks to protect Access Routes and sets out that development 
that would have an adverse impact upon an access route available to the public will 
not be permitted unless a suitable diversion or appropriate alternative route can be 
provided by the developer.  According to the records held by the Council there are no 
claimed rights of way on this area of land.

The Council’s Access Officer advises that core path 87 runs along the northern side 
of Main Street which is at the entrance of this site. This route should therefore remain 
open and accessible at all times and this can be controlled by a planning condition.

Impact on Residential and Neighbouring Amenity

Policy HD3 of the Local Development Plan sets out that residential amenity of 
existing established residential areas and proposed new housing developments will 
be afforded protection.  The Council has adopted supplementary planning guidance 
on Householder Development which sets out standards for privacy and amenity.  

Impacts on neighbouring housing

The relationship of the proposed development to all existing housing has been 
considered. The nearest existing dwellings to the proposed residential properties are 
those to the south on Northfield Terrace and The Old Bakery on Gladstone Terrace 
to the south western corner. Despite the proposals occupying higher ground than 
these existing houses, the proposals are sufficiently distant from these neighbours 
that the development will not cause loss of light or sunlight to these neighbours. 

On privacy, the distance between existing and proposed properties on the southern 
edge of the site maintains a suitable level of privacy for the existing buildings. The 
structure which Plot 13/14 faces towards is an outbuilding with intervening planting 
providing screening. The rear gardens of properties on Northfield Terrace will adjoin 
the gardens of Plots 5 to 16 of the proposed development. Limited information has 
been provided about the boundary details of these gardens, but provided that these 
gardens are suitably enclosed, the privacy of these gardens will not be detrimentally 
affected by the proposed development. Agreement of the means of boundary 
enclosure can be addressed by a suitably worded planning condition. 

Towards the east, the amenity of properties known as “Borlorac” and “Janretta” are 
not affected by the proposed layout.  There are no other properties in the surrounding 
area that would be adversely affected to an unacceptable level by the proposal that 
would warrant a revision or amendment to the submitted layout.  

Construction works associated with the development of a large residential 
development may cause some local disruption. Because the site bounds existing 
properties it is important to ensure that construction activities are appropriately 
controlled to ensure the operations do not detract from the residential amenity of the 
neighbouring properties. A Construction Method Statement (CMS) can ensure that 
the site is being developed in a controlled and suitable manner. The agreement of a 
CMS is requested by the EHO. If Members are minded to approved this application it 

Page 24



is recommended that this mitigation can be agreed as a suspensive planning 
condition. 

Relationships within the site

Within the site itself, the positioning of the dwellings have been well designed to 
avoid causing residential amenity conflicts.

Air Source Heat Pumps

Air source heat pumps (ASHP) are proposed to enable the houses to achieve the 
required levels of energy performance and generation to meet the requirements of 
the Building Standards Regulations. These installations can lead to noise nuisances.   
Further details of the ASHP were lodged. An updated comment from the Council’s 
EHO has not been provided at the time of writing but the same specification of ASHP 
was proposed by the developer in Duns which had a similar residential context. 
These details were acceptable provided the noise emitted from the equipment does 
not exceed Noise Rating Curve NR20 between the hours of 2300 - 0700 and NR 30 
at all other times when measured within all noise sensitive properties. Controlling 
noise emissions from ASHP in this manner and to this noise level is fairly standard. It 
is recommended that it would be appropriate to set the same noise level for the 
ASHP installations in this location and also ensure that the equipment is maintained 
and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions to stay in compliance 
with the aforementioned noise limits. Suitably worded standard planning conditions 
can impose these restrictions to ensure that the installations do not harm the amenity 
of neighbouring properties. 

Having considered the proposals against Policy HD3, the development would not 
unreasonably affect the residential amenity of new houses within the development 
and existing houses outwith the site. 

Garage Demolition 

The removal of the now dilapidated Viewfield Garage and its associated petrol 
pumps to unlock the development potential of this site will not pose any detrimental 
visual impacts. 

The Councils Land Contamination Officer has not identified that the former use of the 
site has resulted in any contamination of the land so no further land contamination 
mitigation is required.

Ecology

Policies EP1 to EP3 seeks to protect sites and species afforded international and 
national protection from adverse forms of development and also aim to safeguard 
and enhance local biodiversity.

The application site is not located within or has been identified to impact on any 
designated nature conservation sites. The former garage building on the site was 
judged to have low bat roost potential. A bat survey was undertaken which confirmed 
that no evidence of bats existed in this structure and neither was there any planting in 
the surrounding area that would support bats. There is potential for the site to support 
breeding birds which this development could disrupt through ground works or works 
close to the bounding hedge row. To mitigate this impact, a planning condition is 
recommended that no development should commence in the breeding bird season 

Page 25



(March – August) unless a Species Protection Plan is agreed. The submitted surveys 
have not found evidence of any other protected species or their habitat within the 
site.

Policy EP3 aims to enhance the biodiversity value of development sites. The 
development includes proposals for planting which can enhance the local habitat 
network via the planting of native tree and hedge species and the suitable design of 
the SUDS feature to maximise its wildlife potential. An informative note can seek that 
the planting schedules within this site includes suitable species which will positively 
contribute to the biodiversity value of the area. 

Water Supply and Drainage

Policy IS9 of the LDP covers waste water treatment standards and sustainable urban 
drainage.  Water and drainage services would require confirmation in due course, 
and this could be ensured via standard planning condition.

The application form specifies that the means of water supply will be via connection 
to public water supply. Confirmation that the development is being served by an 
appropriate supply of water before the dwelling houses are occupied can be agreed 
by a planning condition.

Foul water is to be disposed of via Scottish Water’s combined sewer network within 
Main Street. This system connects to Chirnside Waste Water Treatment Works 
(WWTW). Presently this WWTW does not have the capacity to serve any further 
developments. SEPA have supported this development provided that Scottish Water 
accepts the loading of the foul drainage from this development into their system. 
Scottish Water have not responded to a consultation request for this application but 
the allocation of the site in the LDP for residential development confirms that the 
principle of the development is acceptable and at the stage of allocation there were 
no insurmountable site service issues. The developers have provided evidence of 
correspondence between themselves and Scottish Water and there has been no 
communication from Scottish Water which objects to this development connecting to 
their system. It understood that to enable the relevant upgrade works to be carried 
out, planning permission must first be obtained. Under these circumstances it is 
recommended that a suspensive planning condition is attached which requires 
confirmation that Scottish Waters foul drainage system has the capacity to accept 
drainage from this development. The condition will specify that the dwellinghouses 
shall not be occupied until the relevant upgrades to Chirnside WWTW have been 
carried out to ensure that adequate foul drainage provision is provided. 

Turning to surface water drainage, due to the lack of a receiving watercourse in the 
area, surface water is to be ultimately disposed of using Scottish Water’s combined 
sewer.  The predicted volumes of discharge, even allowing for the increase of the 
capacity at Chirnside WWTW, require that attenuation is provided on site. This is to 
ensure that the volume of water entering Scottish Water’s system can be controlled 
to a suitable level. It is proposed that surface water will be treated and attenuated in 
a SUDS basin, illustrated on the site plan. Both SEPA and SBC Flood Risk and 
Coastal Management Officers are satisfied that this proposal is being designed to 
comply with SUDS principles. Given the absence of any confirmation from Scottish 
Water at this stage, it is considered appropriate to attach a planning condition which 
confirms that the drainage system is properly connected to the public drainage 
network

Page 26



Precise details relating to water supply and drainage remain to be agreed but it is 
considered that these matters can be secured through planning conditions to ensure 
that the site is adequately serviced.

Waste

Policy PMD2 requires that developments provide space for waste storage and that 
waste collection vehicles can adequate access the site.

The Council’s Waste and Recycling advisor in Neighbourhood Services has 
confirmed that the site access and layout does not raise any refuse collection issues. 
Rear access for terraced properties has been provided so it will be possible for 
residents to take their waste bins to the street for collection. The proposals have not, 
however, identified a hard standing within each plot for bin storage. There appears 
adequate space in each plot to achieve this; therefore, it is recommended that a 
suitably worded planning condition is attached to ensure that that provision is made 
for waste storage and collection within the development.  

Flooding

Policy IS8 seeks to discourage development taking place at areas of flood risk or 
lead to flood risks arising to properties elsewhere. 

Objection comments have suggested that neighbouring properties and the road 
network, which occupy a lower ground level than this site, have been flooded 
previously and the development of this ground would exacerbate local flood risk 
problems. The Councils Flood Risk and Coastal Management Engineers have 
advised that the site is not at risk from fluvial or pluvial flood risk and this 
development will not lead to flood risk from these sources occurring elsewhere. 

Evidence has been provided from third parties that in periods of heavy rainfall there 
may be a localised problem with how water is drained as it has been seen to pool on 
Main Street. This development has included a SUDS basin which will store surface 
water so that it can be disposed of in a controlled manner. SUDS criteria will require 
that the design of the SUDS system is informed by up-to-date rainfall data to ensure 
that it has sufficient capacity to cater for surface water runoff. SBC Flood Engineers 
have acknowledged that the location of the pond on higher ground than properties on 
Northfield Terrace could mean that if the SUDS basin is only built to a low level then 
it could have the potential to overtop in periods of high rainfall and increase the flood 
risk to these neighbouring properties. To mitigate this, it is recommended that the 
SUDS basin is designed to a higher specification which allows for a 1 in 200 with a 
climate change allowance of 33% year level standard so as not to increase the flood 
risk downstream. If Members are minded to approve this development, it is 
recommended that a planning condition is attached to agree the final details of the 
SUDS pond to ensure it caters for the higher level of design to avoid it leading to any 
flood risk. 

Subject to the inclusion of an appropriate planning condition, the development can be 
considered to be in compliance with Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan.

Developer Contributions

Policy IS2 of the LDP is relevant and is supported by SBC’s approved SPG on 
Development Contributions. A residential development in this location would normally 
trigger financial developer contributions towards both Chirnside Primary School and 

Page 27



Berwickshire High School. However, as the proposed dwellings represent an 
affordable housing scheme and it is the intention to control this occupation via a 
suitably worded planning condition, this development is exempt from developer 
contributions towards Education. 

The number of dwelling units proposed requires a contribution towards Play Space. A 
financial contribution towards off site play facilities is preferred at a rate of £500 per 
dwelling unit. I can report that the developer has agreed to meet this requirement 
which can be secured through a legal agreement should Members decide to support 
this application. Subject to the conclusion of a legal agreement for play space, the 
proposed development will comply with the requirements of Policy IS2.

CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposals represent the suitable development of part of an 
allocated site, addressing the site requirements for this allocation listed in the LDP 
and not preventing the remaining allocated land from being developed. The siting, 
scale and design of the proposed residential development integrates appropriately 
with the character of the surrounding area. The proposals are, therefore, judged to be 
consistent with Local Development Plan policies and supporting planning guidance 
covering, but not limited to, placemaking and design, accessibility, the protection of 
residential amenity and affordable housing. 

Subject to a legal agreement and compliance with the schedule of conditions, the 
development will accord with the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 
2016 and there are no material considerations that would justify a departure from 
these provisions.

RECOMMENDATION BY CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER:

I recommend that the application is approved, subject to conclusion of the required 
legal agreement covering the implementation and maintenance of structural planting 
to the north of the site and developer contributions towards play space and subject to 
the undernoted conditions and informative.   

Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
complete accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.

2. The proposed residential units shall meet the definition of "affordable 
housing" as set out in the adopted Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 
2016 and any accompanying supplementary planning guidance and shall only 
be occupied in accordance with arrangements (to include details of terms of 
occupation and period of availability) which shall first have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.
Reason: The permission has been granted for affordable housing, and 
development of the site for unrestricted market housing would attract 
contributions to infrastructure and services, including local schools.

3. No development shall commence until precise details (including samples 
where requested by the Planning Authority) of all external wall and roof 

Page 28



finishes for the approved dwellings, and full details of the surfacing of all 
shared surfaces and footways have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority.  Thereafter the development shall be 
completed in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed 
in writing with the planning authority.  
Reason:  To ensure the material finishes respect the character and 
appearance of the surrounding area.

4. No development shall take place except in strict accordance with a scheme of 
hard and soft landscaping works, which has first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority. Details of the scheme shall 
include 
i. existing and finished ground levels in relation to a fixed datum 

preferably ordnance
ii. precise details of all soft landscaping works which includes the 

location of new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed areas and the 
schedule of plants to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/density

iii. precise details of all proposed means of enclosure
iv. location and design, including materials, of all retaining walls
v. A programme for completion and subsequent maintenance.
Reason: To ensure the satisfactory form, layout and assimilation of the 
development.

5. Core Path 87 which runs along the northern side of Main Street should 
remain open and accessible at all times unless proposals for any temporary 
closure which shall include a suitable diversion are submitted to and agreed 
in writing with the Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect access adjacent to the development site.

6. Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises will not 
exceed Noise Rating Curve NR20 between the hours of 2300 - 0700 and NR 
30 at all other times when measured within all noise sensitive properties 
(windows can be open for ventilation). The noise emanating from any plant 
and machinery used on the premises should not contain any discernible tonal 
component. Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2
Reason: To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.  

7. All plant and machinery shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with 
the manufacturer's instructions so as to stay in compliance with the 
aforementioned noise limits. 
Reason: To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.  

8. At least 6 weeks prior to the development commencing operations the 
applicant must prepare and submit a Construction Method Statement (CMS) 
for approval by the Planning Authority. Once approved this document will 
form the operational parameters under which the development will be 
operated and managed. The plan must address the following:
• Hours of operation
• Vehicle movement
• Protection and monitoring of private water supplies
• Noise mitigation/ equipment maintenance
• Dust - mitigation and management 
• Lighting - prevention of nuisance
• Complaints procedure/ communication of noisy works to receptors

Page 29



Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties.

9. No development shall commence during the breeding bird season (March-
August) unless in strict accordance with a Species Protection Plan (SPP) for 
breeding birds that shall be submitted to and approved by the Planning 
Authority. The SPP shall include provision for a pre-development 
supplementary survey and a mitigation plan.
Reason: To ensure that species and habitats affected by the development are 
afforded suitable protection for the construction and operation of the 
development.

10. No development shall commence until a scheme of details setting out 
arrangements and locations for domestic waste and recycling storage and 
collection are submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.  
Thereafter the development is to be completed in accordance with the 
approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning 
Authority.  
Reason:  To ensure suitable provisions are made for the provision and 
storage of domestic waste and recycling within the site.

11. No development shall commence until written confirmation has been provided 
by Scottish Water for the prior written approval of the planning authority, that 
the public mains water supply is available to serve the development hereby 
approved.  Prior to the occupation of the first dwellinghouse(s), written 
confirmation shall be provided for the approval of the Planning Authority that 
the development has been connected to the public mains water supply.
Reason: To ensure that the Development is adequately serviced with a 
sufficient supply of wholesome water and there are no unacceptable impacts 
upon the amenity of any neighbouring properties.

12. No development shall commence until written confirmation has been provided 
by Scottish Water for the prior written approval of the Planning Authority that 
the public drainage system has capacity to accommodate the development 
hereby approved or that works will be undertaken to ensure that the existing 
drainage infrastructure will have the capacity to serve this development 
before the first dwellinghouse is occupied. Thereafter and prior to the 
occupation of the first dwellinghouse(s), written confirmation shall be provided 
for the approval of the Planning Authority that the development has been 
connected to the public drainage network.
Reason: To ensure that the development does not have a detrimental effect 
on public health.

13. No development shall commence until precise details of the design of the 
SuDS scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The sustainable urban drainage system shall comply with 
CIRA C753 SuDS Manual and the SuDS basin shall be designed to allow for 
a 1 in 200 flood event with 33% climate change allowance so as not to 
increase flood risk elsewhere, unless otherwise agreed in writing. Thereafter, 
the development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the agreed 
details.  Prior to occupation of the first dwellinghouse hereby approved written 
evidence shall be supplied to the planning Authority that the development has 
been connected to the public water drainage network.
Reason: To ensure that the development does not have a detrimental effect 
on public health.

Page 30



Informatives 

1. Opportunities exist to enhance the habitat network and promote biodiversity 
through native tree and hedgerow planting and through careful design of 
SUDS features, in accordance with the advice outlined in the Ecological 
Walkover Survey (Tweed Ecology, October 2017. These species should be 
included within the planting details sought in response to Condition 3 section 
ii. and structural planting to be secured by the Section 75 legal agreement.

2. In the event that bats are discovered following the commencement of works, 
works should stop immediately and the developer must contact SNH (tel: 
01896-756652) for further guidance.  Works can only recommence by 
following any guidance given by SNH. The developer and all contractors to be 
made aware of accepted standard procedures of working with bats at 
www.bats.org.uk. Further information and articles available at: 
http://www.bats.org.uk/pages/bats_and_buildings.html
http://www.bats.org.uk/pages/existing_buildings.html
http://www.bats.org.uk/publications_download.php/1404/Bats_Trees.pdf

3. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, 
as amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the 
nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent 
for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this 
act. If nesting birds are discovered after works commence, such works must 
stop and a competent ecologist must be contacted for advice.

DRAWING NUMBERS

Reference Plan Type Date Received
Chirnside Location Plan 12.02.2018
CH01_SL02 Location Plan 12.02.2018
CH01_SL301 Site Sections 12.02.2018
2016 BB_901 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016 BBB_902 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016 BBE_901 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016 DD_901 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016 DD_902 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016_DDH_902 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016_DH_901 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016_EBB_901 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016_FF_902 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016_HH_902 Elevations 12.02.2018
2016_HDD_902 Elevations 12.02.2018
Chirn-Eng-007 Site Levels 23.05.2018
CH01_SL04 C Site Lay Out 31.07.2018
2016_GGGG_902 Elevations 31.07.2018
2016_HGGG_901 Elevations 31.07.2018

Approved by
Name Designation Signature 
Ian Aikman Chief Planning Officer

Page 31



The original version of this report has been signed by the Service Director 
(Regulatory Services) and the signed copy has been retained by the Council.

Author(s)
Name Designation
Scott Shearer Peripatetic  Planning Officer

Page 32



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

1 OCTOBER 2018

APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

ITEM: REFERENCE NUMBER: 18/01044/FUL
OFFICER: Ranald Dods
WARD: Tweeddale East
PROPOSAL: Sub-division of dwellinghouse and alterations to provide 2 

dwellinghouses
SITE: Loaningdale, Edderston Road, Peebles
APPLICANT: Ms Ruth McKean
AGENT: Ferguson Planning

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is located on the southern edge of Peebles, within the settlement 
envelope but outwith the towns conservation area.  Access is gained from a private road at 
the end of Edderston Road.  Loaningdale is one of three properties (Loaningdale, Morning 
Hill Cottage and The Bothy) grouped around a shared gravel parking area.  Morning Hill 
Cottage and The Bothy were converted from outhouses.  Located to the north of the 
northernmost of these properties (The Bothy) is a house known as The Steading.  This 
dwelling is at a lower level and there is garden ground to the front, with car parking located 
to the north.  Although that it appears to be within the grouping of buildings, the level 
difference and separate parking gives a degree of detachment from the properties on the 
upper level.  To the east lies Tantah, a subdivided category B listed house.  Open farmland 
lies to the south and west. To the south east of Tantah is a property known as Tantah Croft 
which appears to be used as holiday accommodation. 

Loaningdale is a traditionally built and detailed house with accommodation ranging over one 
and a half storeys and also within the attic space.  The house was extended after permission 
was granted in 2009.  An area of garden ground, approximately 780m² and roughly J 
shaped, is located to the south of the house.  A decked area gives access to the garden 
from the first floor of the property.  The decking also wraps around the western gable of the 
building and looks over the farmland to the west.  To the front (north) of the house is an 
extensive area of gravel.  This was doubtless once garden ground but is now an area used 
for parking.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This application is made for planning permission to subdivide Loaningdale into 2 houses.  
That will be done by blocking up the internal openings created when the house was 
extended.  The garden ground to the rear will also be subdivided.  The western house will be 
allocated approximately 370m² with the remainder being retained by the eastern unit.  That 
latter house’s garden will be in two distinct sections, one immediately behind the house and 
the other to the south of the newly created garden ground of the western house.   

A new entrance door will be formed from a window in the north elevation.  This will give 
access to the western house from the parking area.  On the southern elevation, a set of 
French doors will be formed to give garden access for the western house.  New stairs to the 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5b



west will give external access to the rear of the western house.  No other external 
differences will be seen.
 
PLANNING HISTORY

There have been several applications for this site.  Permission was given for the conversion 
of the outhouses to form self-contained accommodation in March 1990 (ref 90/01429/FUL) 
and these are now known as Morning Hill Cottage and The Bothy.  In July 2007 permission 
was granted for the removal of the northern part of the outbuildings and the erection of a 
new house (ref 07/00413/FUL), that new house being known as The Steading.  

Two applications in 2007 to alter and extend the house were withdrawn prior to 
determination.  An application (08/01191/FUL) to alter and extend Loaningdale was refused 
in 2008 due to the proposal having an unacceptable adverse impact on the dwelling.  An 
application (09/00608/FUL) for a revised scheme, which addressed those reasons for 
refusal, was granted in 2009.  That was to alter and extend the house and also to alter and 
extend the ancillary accommodation which was the subject of 90/01429/FUL. That latter 
element provided a double garage and additional accommodation and raised the ridge by 
1.4m to allow for the use of the roof space as studio/study accommodation.  In 2014, an 
application was granted to convert that ancillary first floor ancillary accommodation into self-
contained residential accommodation (12/00651/FUL).

REPRESENTATION SUMMARY

The application was advertised in the local press and neighbours were notified.  As a result 
of the notification processes, 10 representations were received.  The material grounds of 
objection contained in those representations are summarised below.  Copies of all 
representations can be viewed in full on Public Access.

 Water supply
 Impact on parking
 Bin storage
 Impact on listed building
 Over development
 Road & pedestrian safety
 Surface water 
 Density.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016

PMD2 – Quality standards  
HD3 – Protection of residential amenity
EP7 – Listed buildings
IS2 – Developer contributions
IS6 – Road adoption standards
IS7 – Parking provision and standards

OTHER PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

The following are material considerations:

SPG – Placemaking and design 2010;

Page 36



SPG – Privacy and sunlight guide 2006.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:

Scottish Borders Council Consultees

Roads Planning Service:  The RPS does not object to the application and suggests 
conditions.  It is noted that the sub-division of the house relates to separating a recent 
extension to this property (09/00608/FUL).  The new unit will be taken as a new dwelling in 
terms counting towards the number of houses which can be served by a private road.  If 
approved, this will represent the 4th new dwelling served by this private road.  No further new 
builds could be supported without upgrading the road to an adoptable standard, per current 
policy.  

There is sufficient parking and turning provided to support the development and the 
proposed road surface improvement specifications are adequate for the existing road 
condition.  I have no reason to disagree with this assessment.

Education and Lifelong Learning:  No objection was raised.  Developer contributions will 
be required for Kingsland Primary School and Peebles High School.

KEY PLANNING ISSUES:

Whether or not the development will comply with planning policies and guidance with respect 
to residential development within an existing settlement, particularly having had regard to 
residential amenity and whether or not the development will significantly adversely affect the 
amenity of neighbouring properties and; road safety matters in particular, whether the 
access road is capable of servicing adequately the development.  If not, whether there are 
material considerations that would justify a departure from the provisions of the development 
plan and material considerations.

ASSESSMENT OF APPLICATION:

Principle

The site is within the settlement envelope of Peebles as defined by the Scottish Borders 
Local Development Plan 2016 (LDP).  The existing house has been extended and that 
extension is of a suitable size to allow conversion to a separate dwelling.  The provisions of 
policies PMD2 and HD3, principally, will guide the proposed development.  The broad 
principle of residential development in this location does not conflict with the established land 
use locally or the terms of the LDP.  

Density and layout 

The grouping of buildings on and adjacent to the site comprises two buildings at an upper 
level with a further separate building at a lower level to the north.  Of the two buildings at the 
upper level, two residential units (Morning Hill Cottage and The Bothy) lie to the west and 
Loaningdale lies to the south.  The proposal will see the sub-division of Loaningdale into two 
houses, thereby creating a fourth unit on the upper level.  The objections relating to over 
development of the group are noted but it is considered that the resulting development will 
not be overly dense and does not represent over development of the site or more widely, 
town cramming.

The proposal does not indicate any additional works which will add to the current footprint.  
The existing garden ground to the south of the house will also be sub-divided.  Although the 

Page 37



layout of the resultant garden associated with the eastern house will be slightly odd, it is not 
unacceptable.  The overall layout of the two houses, when viewed with the two properties to 
the west, is acceptable.  The proposed residential unit will have a relationship with existing 
properties compatible with neighbouring uses and the neighbouring built form.  The 
proposed subdivision would continue to respect the character of the surrounding area and 
will not be detrimental to the setting of the nearby listed building.

Parking and access

There appears to be sufficient space within the site for parking for the proposed house.  This 
view is supported by the Roads Planning Service who offers no objections to the proposed 
development, subject to conditions covering road improvements.  There is no requirement to 
have places allocated and the submitted layout plan indicates nine spaces to serve four 
properties.  One of those indicated spaces is in front of the proposed house but also 
immediately in front of a garage door to Morning Hill Cottage.  This clearly will not be a 
practicable solution but, as there appears to be sufficient parking and turning space within 
the site, there is no need for that space in any event.

The access to the site is by means of a private road.  That currently serves a number of 
properties.  Current Transportation Standards in the LDP confirm that a private access can 
serve a maximum of four new dwellinghouses, that is, those built after 1984 but excluding 
conversions of outbuildings or ancillary accommodation to houses.  The fact that there are 
three such dwellinghouses accessed from the private road indicates that, unless that road is 
brought up to adoptable standards, the site is capable of accepting only one more house.  
That opportunity will be used up if this application is granted.  The applicant has indicated 
that they have joint ownership of the road and intend to upgrade it.  Based on the advice of 
RPS, there is no requirement for this upgrade to allow the development to proceed.  
Members will note that there have been objections lodged on the grounds of shared 
ownership but this issue is a matter of private law and outwith the remit of planning and any 
arrangement which is reached amongst parties regarding the upgrading of the road is not a 
matter for planning.  Although the upgraded road will not be to an adoptable standard, RPS 
is satisfied that the proposed surface improvement is adequate in this instance.  I have no 
reason to call into question the assessments made by RPS.  Conditions requiring the 
upgrading work to be completed and the construction of a passing place on the private road 
prior to the occupation of the house are recommended. 

Services

The applicant states that the new house will be connected to the public mains water and foul 
drainage systems.    There will be no impacts on any private water supplies serving existing 
nearby dwellings.  Comments have been received suggesting that all spring water taps on 
the original Loaningdale plot are turned off in order to protect the supply serving the two flats 
in Tantah.  This is considered to be an unreasonable request as the proposed new unit will 
be served directly off the public mains.    Comments have also been received that the 
existing access road is subject to surface water run-off.   The proposal will not affect the 
current surface water drainage arrangement and as such, to require the applicant to address 
the existing issue would seem to be disproportionate.  In any event, the applicant proposes 
to upgrade the road as part of this development.

Waste

The submitted layout plan shows bin stances for each property despite third party 
representations suggesting otherwise.  Those associated with the western property will be 
located towards the rear whilst those serving the eastern house will be located behind the 

Page 38



boundary wall close to the entrance to the site.  There appears, however, ample room to 
locate these to the rear or side of the eastern property.  

Development Contributions

Development contributions are required for education provision and also for the Peebles 
bridge study in accordance with policy IS2.  A legal agreement will be necessary to secure 
these contributions.

Placemaking and Design

The proposed development will not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area.  
The new house can be created by the subdivision of the existing house with minimal external 
alterations.  The alterations required to bring about that subdivision are modest and would 
include the formation of a door from a window on the front elevation and the formation of 
French doors from a window on the rear elevation.  They are considered compatible with the 
design of the existing house and those which adjoin it and would be appropriate to the 
character of the surrounding area.  The alterations are considered compliant with Policy 
PMD2. 

Neighbouring Amenity

As the application is for subdivision to create an additional house, the impact of the proposal 
on neighbouring amenity (such as privacy and light loss) is relatively straight forward.  The 
external layout (other than garden ground layout to the south) will not be altered and, as a 
consequence, there will be no loss of light or overshadowing.  Privacy issues arising from 
the subdivision of garden ground to the rear can be addressed by the erection of fencing 
along its boundary.  A condition requiring the submission of details for the boundary 
treatment is recommended.  To the front, a habitable room will be converted to an entrance 
hall.  This will be the only alteration and will reduce the number of habitable rooms 
overlooking the common area to the front and is arguably a betterment of the current 
position. The proposals will have a neutral effect on the residential amenity of neighbouring 
dwellings and will comply with the aims of Policy HD3. 

CONCLUSION

The proposal is acceptable and can be adequately accommodated on the site together with 
appropriate service provision and will not result in over development of the group.  The 
design of the changes required to facilitate the development are compatible with the 
character of the area.  There will be no adverse impact on residential amenity and adequate 
access and parking can be achieved.  Subject to the successful conclusion of a legal 
agreement covering development contributions and compliance with the schedule of 
conditions, the development accords with the relevant provisions of the Local Development 
Plan 2016 and there are no material considerations that would justify a departure from these 
provisions.

RECOMMENDATION BY CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER:

I recommend the applications are approved subject to the following conditions and 
informatives and the completion of a legal agreement for development contributions: 

1 The proposed upgrade to the surface of the private access, shown on approved plan 
2018/23/109, shall be fully constructed and operational prior to occupation of the 
dwellinghouse hereby approved. 
Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory form of development.

Page 39



 2 Prior to the occupation of the dwellinghouse hereby approved, a passing place shall 
be provided and fully operational on the private road - per council specification DC- 1.
Reason:  To accommodate for the increase in traffic using the private road. 

 3 Prior to the occupation of the dwellinghouse hereby approved, a vertically close 
boarded screen fence 1.8 metres high shall be erected along the boundary of the site 
marked green on approved plan 2018/23/102.  Details of the fence shall first be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.  Thereafter, the 
approved boundary treatment shall be erected prior to the occupation of the house 
and shall be retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that the site is adequately screened from adjoining neighbouring 
properties.

DRAWING NUMBERS

2018/23/101 Location plan
2018/23/109 Site plan
2018/23/102 Block plan
2018/23/107 Floor plan
2018/23/108 Rev A Existing elevations
2018/23/103 Floor plans
2018/23/104 Floor plans
2018/23/105 Floor plans
2018/23/106 Elevations

Approved by
Name Designation Signature 
Ian Aikman Chief Planning Officer

The original version of this report has been signed by the Chief Planning Officer and the 
signed copy has been retained by the Council.

Author(s)
Name Designation
Ranald Dods Planning Officer

Page 40



Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning & Building Standards Committee 1st October 2018 1

PLANNING APPEALS & REVIEWS

Briefing Note by Chief Planning Officer

PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

1st  October 2018

1 PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of this briefing note is to give details of Appeals and Local 
Reviews which have been received and determined during the last 
month.

2 APPEALS RECEIVED

2.1 Planning Applications

Nil

2.2 Enforcements

Nil

2.3 Works to Trees

Nil

3 APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED

3.1 Planning Applications

Nil

3.2 Enforcements

Nil

3.3 Works to Trees

3.3.1 Reference: 18/00621/TPO
Proposal: Works to trees
Site: Land West of Glenkinnon Lodge Peelburnfoot, 

Clovenfords
Page 43

Agenda Item 6



Planning & Building Standards Committee 1st October 2018 2

Appellant: Adam Elder

Reason for Refusal: Part Refusal - The application is not consistent with 
the previous woodland management recommendations.  Minimal tree 
removal was proposed in the original surveys to ensure the existing tree 
cover was retained and that it makes a positive contribution to the 
landscape and amenity of the locality.  

The report highlights 14 trees (13 Sycamore and 1 Ash). The BS5837 
categories are 1 Sycamore (A Category), 8 Sycamore, 1 Ash (C Category) 
and 4 Sycamore (Category U). Of the 4 U categories they are all around 
the existing building structure on the site.  The Sycamores and Ash 
contribute to the existing tree cover. While long term management of a 
woodland is supported, the complete removal of a single species in this 
instance is not. There are many silvicultural systems to allow continuous 
cover on a site while sensitive planting of alternative species could be 
undertaken to diversify species. The proposed planting could be 
undertaken over a phased period to allow successful establishment and 
age distribution.

There are presently no agreed plans for future development, and so there 
is no reason that the four Category U trees could not be retained within 
the woodland setting.

The woodland could be managed without the complete removal of single 
species.

Grounds of Appeal: This application was rejected, save for works to 4 
trees on the woodland boundary as recommended for safety reasons 
alone. The remainder of the application concerned an area of self seeded 
sycamore trees which have populated an area open glade within the 
woodland, due to the woodland being unmanaged for fifty years.  A 
significant number of the sycamores are of poor quality and low amenity 
value.  The appellant understands that the existing tree cover should be 
maintained but this does not mean that there are no grounds for selective 
removal, thinning and maintenance of trees especially concerning a 
dominant species which is a recognised threat to the regeneration of other 
species.

Appeal Withdrawn by Appellant 28th August 2018

4 APPEALS OUTSTANDING

4.1 There remained 4 appeals previously reported on which decisions were still 
awaited when this report was prepared on 14th September 2018.  This 
relates to sites at:

 Land South West of Easter 
Happrew Farmhouse, Peebles

 Hutton Hall Barns, Hutton

 Land North West of Gilston Farm, 
Heriot

 Land South West of 6 Lamberton 
Holding, Lamberton

5 REVIEW REQUESTS RECEIVED

5.1 Reference: 18/00398/FUL

Page 44



Planning & Building Standards Committee 1st October 2018 3

Proposal: Change of use from retail to tattoo studio 
(retrospective)

Site: 52 Bank Street, Galashiels
Appellant: Craig Oliver

Reason for Refusal: The proposed development does not comply with 
Policy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it does not 
comprise a Class 1 (retail) or Class 3 (food and drink) use. The level of 
contribution of the proposed use to the town's core retail function will not 
be so significant as to justify its occupation by the proposed use and there 
is no evidence to suggest otherwise. The development would potentially 
detract from the vitality and viability of the town centre and no other 
material considerations would outweigh this potential harm.

5.2 Reference: 18/00929/PPP
Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse
Site: Land North East of Ladywood Lower Greenhill, 

Selkirk
Appellant: Mr and Mrs Eric Forster

Reason for Refusal: The proposed development is contrary to Adopted 
Local Development Plan Policy HD2 and the advice of Supplementary 
Planning Guidance - New Housing in the Borders Countryside (December 
2008), in that: (i) the development is not sympathetic to the character of 
the building group and would not contribute positively to the sense of 
place of the existing building group; and (ii) the Applicant has not 
demonstrated that there is any operational need for new dwellinghouses to 
be located at the site as a direct operational requirement of any 
agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself 
appropriate to the countryside.

6 REVIEWS DETERMINED

Nil

7 REVIEWS OUTSTANDING

7.1 There remained 2 reviews previously reported on which decisions were still 
awaited when this report was prepared on 14th September 2018.  This 
relates to sites at:

 Land West of Langton Birches, 
Duns

 37 Bank Street, Galashiels

8 SECTION 36 PUBLIC LOCAL INQUIRIES RECEIVED

Nil

9 SECTION 36 PUBLIC LOCAL INQUIRIES DETERMINED

Nil

Page 45



Planning & Building Standards Committee 1st October 2018 4

10 SECTION 36 PUBLIC LOCAL INQUIRIES OUTSTANDING

10.1 There remained 3 S36 PLI’s previously reported on which decisions were 
still awaited when this report was prepared on 14th September 2018.  This 
relates to sites at:

 Fallago Rig 1, Longformacus  Fallago Rig 2, Longformacus
 Birneyknowe Wind Farm, Land 

North, South, East & West of 
Birnieknowe Cottage, Hawick



Approved by

Ian Aikman
Chief Planning Officer

Signature ……………………………………

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Laura Wemyss Administrative Assistant (Regulatory) 01835 824000 Ext 5409

Background Papers:  None.
Previous Minute Reference:  None.

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Jacqueline Whitelaw can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Place, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St 
Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA.  Tel. No. 01835 825431 Fax No. 01835 825071
Email: PLACEtransrequest@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 46


	Agenda
	4 Minute.
	5a Land South of Borlorac, Main Street East End, Chirnside - 18/00147/FUL -
	5b Loaningdale, Edderston Road, Peebles - 18/01044/FUL
	6 Appeals and Reviews.

